
 
 
 
Committee: 
 

LICENSING ACT COMMITTEE 

Date: 
 

THURSDAY, 25 MARCH 2010 

Venue: 
 

LANCASTER TOWN HALL 

Time: 4.30 P.M. 
 

A G E N D A 
 

1. Apologies for Absence  
 
2. Minutes  
 
 Minutes of meeting held on 26 November 2009 (previously circulated).     
  
3. Items of Urgent Business Authorised by the Chairman  
 
4. Declarations of Interest  
 
5. Elected Members as Interested Parties (Pages 1 - 6) 
 
 Report of Licensing Manager.  
  
6. Lancaster District Alcohol Harm Reduction Partnership  
 
 Licensing Manager will report at the meeting. 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS 
 
(i) Membership 

 
 Councillors Joyce Taylor (Chairman), Tony Wade (Vice-Chairman), Anne Chapman, 

Chris Coates, Roger Dennison, Helen Helme, Janie Kirkman, Ian McCulloch, 
Peter Robinson, Bob Roe, Sylvia Rogerson, Ron Sands, Roger Sherlock, 
Malcolm Thomas and Morgwn Trolinger 
 

(ii) Queries regarding this Agenda 
 

 Please contact Tom Silvani, Democratic Services - 01524 582132 - email: 
tsilvani@lancaster.gov.uk. 
 

(iii) Changes to Membership or apologies 
 

 Please contact Members’ Secretary, telephone 582170, or alternatively email 
memberservices@lancaster.gov.uk. 
 

MARK CULLINAN, 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE, 

 



 

TOWN HALL, 
DALTON SQUARE, 
LANCASTER, LA1 1PJ 
 
Published on 17 March 2010.   



 

 

LICENSING ACT COMMITTEE  
 
  
 

Elected Members as Interested Parties 
 

25th March 2010 
 

Report of the Licensing Manager  
  
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
This report is to inform Members that the Licensing Act 2003 has been amended to expand the 
definition of “interested party” to include councillors, as long as they are a member of a council 
that is also a licensing authority. 
 
 
This report is public  

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
That the report be noted.  
 
   
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 From 29th January 2010 the Licensing Act includes a fifth provision in section 13(3) to 

include councillors: “Interested party” means any of the following…(e) a member of 
the relevant licensing authority.” The change was brought about by s33 of the 
Policing and Crime Act 2009 

 
 
1.2 This means that councillors can now make representations in respect of most types 

of licensing applications: 
 

• New premises licence applications 
• Applications for a provisional  
• Applications to vary existing premises licence applications 
• Applications to vary existing club premises certificates 
• Minor variation applications 
• Applications for reviews of premises licences or club premises certificates 

 
1.3 Relevant Representations 
 

Representations must address the likely effect of the proposed premises on one or 
more of the following licensing objectives: 
 

• The prevention of crime and disorder 
• Public safety 

Agenda Item 5Page 1



• The prevention of public nuisance 
• The protection of children from harm 
 

Representations about demand or general problems are not relevant. In addition, 
representations must not be frivolous or vexatious. 

 
1.4 Reviews  
 
 Reviews must be made on a ground (or grounds) relevant to the licensing objectives, 

and must not be frivolous or vexatious (as above) 
 
 Additionally, review applications must not be repetitious, if a review has been held 

recently and the circumstances at the premises remain the same, the licensing 
authority could reject the application for review. 

 
1.5 Lacors has published a list of Frequently Asked Questions for elected members as 

interested parties and a copy of that is attached to this report as appendix 1.    
 
2.0 Conclusion 
 
2.1 In summary, this is a significant change from the previous situation, where individual 

Members could only make such representations if they lived in or had a business in 
the vicinity of the premises, or had been specifically asked to represent a constituent 
at a hearing. 

 
However, the statutory constraints on the reasons for representations or reviews still 
apply – they may only be made on the grounds of one or more of the licensing 
objectives 

 
 
CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and 
Rural Proofing) 
 
None. 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
Any costs associated with Licensing Enforcement officers’ work involved in monitoring 
licensed premises will be met from within existing resources.   
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
The report has been prepared on behalf of the Head of Legal and Human Resources.  
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None 

Contact Officer: Ms W Peck 
Telephone:  01524 582317 
E-mail: wpeck@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref: WP 

 

Page 2



 

Version January 2010  Page 1 of 4 

 
 
Licensing Act 2003 
Committee hearings - FAQs 
 

 
 
 
How many members should constitute a sub committee? 
 
The Act stipulates that ‘A licensing committee may establish one or more sub-committees 
consisting of three members of the committee’ (LA2003 9(1)).  However, the Act is silent on 
quorum for full committee and the sub-committee.  LACORS advice is that quorum should be 
recommended at three because, as there would be a Chair's casting vote, it would create the 
equivalent of one decision maker with consultation from another. However, it is recognised that 
it is for each licensing committee to set its own quorum within the confine of a maximum of 
three in the absence of any relevant regulations. 
 
LACORS suggests that if less than three members sit at the sub committee; this only happens 
in extraordinary circumstances and that the written agreement of all interested parties to this 
arrangement is obtained before the hearing commences.  This agreement should then be 
stored with all other relevant papers. 
 
 
Can members make representations at licensing committees? 
 
Councillors either need to be 'interested parties' in their own right or need to be asked by an 
'interested party', specifically, to represent them. 
 
Nearly all councillors are now “interested parties” and can make representations in their own 
right in response to premises licence and club premises certificate applications. If the council is 
a licensing authority, then all its elected councillors are interested parties under s13(3) 
Licensing Act 2003 (as amended by s33 Policing and Crime Act 2009). Elected members can 
make representations in respect of any premises within any ward in the licensing authority 
area.  
 
If the council is not a licensing authority then its elected councillors are not automatically 
included within the list of interested parties.   
 

In offering this advice LACORS wishes to make it clear that:
 

 Legislation may change over time and the advice given is based on the information available at the time the 
guidance was produced. It is not necessarily comprehensive and is subject to revision in the light of further 
information. 

 Only the courts can interpret statutory legislation with any authority. 
 

This advice is not intended to be a definitive guide to, nor substitute for, the relevant law. Independent legal advice should 
be sought where appropriate. 

Page 3



 

Version January 2010  Page 2 of 4 

For further information on the role of councillors as interested parties please see LACORS’ 
FAQs for Councillors as Interested Parties and the revised DCMS Guidance, in particular 
paragraphs 8.5 to 8.15 (both available via www.lacors.gov.uk) 
 
Councillors can also represent residents and other interested parties when specifically 
requested to do so, for example, by acting as an advocate at hearings and during negotiations.  
 
(The other types of people and organisations defined as interested parties include local 
residents and businesses. “Business” is loosely defined, and includes charities, churches, 
community organisations and medical practices, for example.)  
 
The DCMS Guidance states at 8.7 that "Any of these individuals or groups may specifically 
request a representative to make his, her or its representation on his, her or its behalf. For 
example, a legal representative, a friend, a Member of Parliament, a Member of the National 
Assembly for Wales, or a local ward or parish councillor could all act in such a capacity."   
 
Councillors should ensure that they adhere to the requirements set out in the Model Code of 
Conduct (The Local Authorities (Model Code of Conduct) Order 2007 when representing other 
interested parties.  
 
Should personal information of interested parties be disclosed to other parties to the 
hearing?   
 
Written letters of objection and support are often received concerning applications, and clearly 
it is important that these are seen by members of the committee (and available to the applicant 
and interested parties) so that they can make an informed decision on the application. The 
addresses of these representations will also need to be considered by the committee in many 
instances including considering the weight of representations made concerning noise. 
However, it is worth remembering that for data protection reasons and in the interest of the 
parties concerned, that personal information (e.g. names and house numbers) are withheld 
from public circulation, or if the information is requested by the committee or interested parties, 
that it is only circulated with prior permission of those making the representation. Where this 
permission is not acquired these written representations should be mentioned in an abstract 
way such as: ‘12 letters of objection were received from residents in Brewery Lane’  

 
Data protection considerations should also be remembered during dialogue at the committee 
hearing.  
 
It should also be noted that paragraphs 9.14 to 9.18 of the revised Guidance (December 
2009) advise that in may be prudent in exceptional and isolated circumstances to withhold 
some or all of an interested party’s personal details to mitigate any intimidation or violence 
which might occur should such details be divulged. 
 
 
Do all copies of all representations need to be sent to the people making 
representations? 
 
For petitions specifically do copies of these, and notifications of the time of the hearing, 
need to go to all signatories or just to the main petition contact? 
 

Page 4



 

Version January 2010  Page 3 of 4 

LACORS is of the view that where at all possible, a lead contact should be given for the 
received petition.  This is so that the licensing authority can verify that this individual fits the 
criteria of an ‘interested party’ (LA2003 13 (3)) and for verification of which licensing objective 
the representation is in relation to.  For petitions with a large number of signatories, licensing 
authorities may wish to consider adding a disclaimer to the following effect: 
 
‘Whilst the licensing authority can verify the authenticity of the lead contact for this petition, it 
cannot guarantee the status of other signatories in relation to the criteria stipulated by the 
Licensing Act 2003 for relevant representations ’ 
 
Copies of representations should then be sent to that lead contact and made publicly available 
with all other papers for viewing by members of the public in the interest of local authority cost 
and efficiency.  How the authority intends to approach petitions should be described in the 
committee protocol. 
 
Generally, copies of representations should be sent to all interested parties, but in cases where 
this is administratively unmanageable (e.g. contentious applications that attract hundreds of 
lengthy written representations) local authorities may wish to consider making these documents 
available for public inspection and informing interested parties where and how these can be 
accessed for inspection. 
 
 
Should members be encouraged to make site visits in relation to applications? 
 
LACORS is of the view that site visits are generally unnecessary and can put Members and the 
Licensing Authority at risk of accusation of bias. If a site visit were believed to be justified then 
a local authority would be advised to have guidance providing clear criteria for the visit being 
required and as to the conduct of the visit. 
 
 
How should members of the licensing authority decide applications made by the local 
authority?  E.g to licence public spaces. 
 
The Government has encouraged local authorities to consider applying for their own premises 
licences for public space. It is important that such applications are seen to be dealt with fairly 
and it might therefore be worth considering whether such applications are always decided by a 
licensing committee and not the licensing officer even where there are no representations. If a 
member has been involved in agreeing a policy to apply for a premises licence for local 
authority space, or for example, is on the board of a school which is applying for a licence then 
the member needs to consider carefully with his/her licensing/legal officer whether this may 
amount to bias and possibly withdraw from the sub-committee considering the application. 
 
 

Page 5



 

Version January 2010  Page 4 of 4 

Can a councillor who sits on the licensing committee also be a magistrate?   
 
LACORS has discussed this issue with the Justices Clerks Society who have been clear in 
stating the following: "There is no problem with a Councillor being a magistrate provided that 
they do not hear any matters relating to their local authority. When appointed they receive 
guidance from the Lord Chancellor that they should not sit on such matters". 
  
LACORS has also discussed with the Justices Clerks Society, the Standards Board and the 
Department for Constitutional Affairs; whether a councillor sitting on the licensing committee 
should hear cases (licensing or otherwise) against the local authority, and whether a councillor 
sitting on the licensing committee should hear appeals against the local authority’s licensing 
decision.  The answer to both these questions was ‘no’. 
 
For more advice on these areas, please see our website www.lacors.gov.uk, and access the reference 
section/alcohol and public entertainment licensing/licensing committees.   
 
LACORS has also issued specific guidance concerning the role of elected Members under the Act.  This 
document offers guidance on personal and prejudicial interests and matters such as common law bias.  This 
document can be accessed on the LACORS website.  
 
LACORS has also issued guidance to local authorities concerning the administration of licensing committees 
under the Act.  This guidance includes advice on receiving representations, the Chairs and officers role at 
committee and model versions of the committee protocol and committee agenda.  This document can be obtained 
via the following link: 
 http://www.lacors.gov.uk/lacors/upload/16571.doc 
 
 
 

Page 6


	Agenda
	5 Elected Members as Interested Parties
	Appendix 1


